
Page 1 of 1 
 

MEETING AGENDA 
The Town of Ridgeland 

      PLANNING COMMISSION 
Monday, December 8, 2025, 5:30 P.M. 

    Town Hall, Council Chambers, 1 Town Hall, Ridgeland, SC 29936 
 

STATEMENT OF MEDIA NOTIFICATION: “In accordance with South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, Section 30-4-80(d), as amended, all local 
media were duly notified of the time, date, place, and agenda of this meeting.” 

 
I. Call to Order: Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation by Chairman Frankie Denmark 

II. Roll Call 

III. Approval of Minutes: November 10, 2025 

IV. Old Business: 

V. New Business: 

1. The applicant and authorized agent, Matison Cleland, applied for rezoning of one (1) lot of record 
consisting of 1.7 acres.  The property is TMS# 063-26-17-002 and is located at 148 West Langford 
Street within town limits.  The request is to rezone from T3 Neighborhood General to T4 
Neighborhood Core. 
 
Public Hearing Comments: Ask for public comment 
Planning Commissions role: Advisory to Council     

 Action needed: Recommendation to Council 
 

2. The applicant and authorized agent on behalf of the Town of Ridgeland, Dennis Averkin, Town 
Administrator, applied for a petition for annexation and zoning designation of T4 Neighborhood Core 
for one lot of record located at 824 East Frontage Road in unincorporated Jasper County, South 
Carolina.  The property [TMS #062-00-10-002] is contiguous to the Town of Ridgeland’s 
jurisdictional boundary and consists of approximately 9.4 acres.  

 
Public Meeting Comments: Ask for public comment 
Planning Commissions role: Advisory to Council  

  Action needed: Recommendation to Council  
 

VI. Staff Comments:  

VII. Commissioner’s Comments: 

VIII. Adjournment 



Page 1 of 2 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
The Town of Ridgeland 

      PLANNING COMMISSION 
      Monday, November 10, 2025, 5:30 P.M. 

    Town Hall, Council Chambers, 1 Town Sq, Ridgeland, SC 29936 
 

STATEMENT OF MEDIA NOTIFICATION: “In accordance with South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, Section 30-4-80(d), as amended, all local 
media were duly notified of the time, date, place, and agenda of this meeting.” 

 
Planning Commissioners in attendance: 

Chairman Denmark, Commissioner Rodina, Commissioner Tenerowicz, Commissioner Mohr, and Commissioner May  

Town of Ridgeland Staff: 

Aaron Rucker (Director of Planning and Community Development) 

 

I. Call to Order: Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation by Chairman Frankie Denmark 

Meeting was called to order at 5:30pm by Chairman Denmark 

II. Roll Call 

Roll call was taken by Aaron. All members present. 

III. Approval of Minutes: October 20, 2025 

Motion to approve October 20, 2025, meeting minutes were made by Commissioner Tenerowicz and 

seconded by Commissioner May. Motion passed unanimously. 

IV. Old Business: 

None 

V. New Business: 

1. The applicant and property owner, Marlon Sheffield, applied for rezoning of one (1) lot of record 
consisting of 4 acres.  The property is TMS# 063-17-02-030 and is located on Great Swamp Road 
within town limits.  The request is to rezone from T3 Neighborhood General to T4 Neighborhood 
Core.     
 
Aaron Rucker explained that Mr. Sheffield requested to have the property rezoned to T4 because a 
landscape business has expressed an interest that is not allowed in T3.  This would not be the only use 
allowed, however.    

  
Public Hearing Comments: Nancy Lowther, a resident on Great Swamp Road, spoke in opposition 
to the rezoning citing that plenty of underutilized commercial areas already exist elsewhere in town 
better suited to this request and concerns of increased traffic. 

 
Motion: Commissioner Rodina made a motion to recommend approval for the request to rezone 
TMS# 063-17-02-030 from T3 Neighborhood General to T4 Neighborhood Core with the intention of 
utilizing the property for a landscaping business. Motion seconded by Chairman Denmark. Motion 
passed with a majority vote 3-2. The request proceeds with the Town Council for first reading or 
ordinance anticipated to occur on November 20th, 2025. 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

VI. Staff Comments:  

Staff briefly spoke about the upcoming building of  a new State Farm Insurance office at Old House Rd and 

Sweet William Rd, Nimmer, and Raftelis was chosen by council to conduct the impact fee/ capital 

improvement study. 

VII. Commissioner’s Comments: 

The tree ordinance.  

VIII. Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn was made by Commissioner Rodina and seconded by Commissioner May. Motion 

passed unanimously. 







Jasper County, SC

Developed by

Parcel ID 063-26-17-002
Sec/Twp/Rng n/a
Property
Address  

148 LANGFORD
ST W

Alternate
ID  

063-26-17-002

Class Rural commercial
(improved)

Acreage 1.7

Owner
Address  

CLELAND TRACY  
3968 TILLMAN RD  
RIDGELAND, SC
29936

Last 2 Sales
Date   Price   Reason   Qual  
8/10/2017   0   n/a   U  
n/a   0   n/a   n/a  

District 02
Brief Tax Description n/a

(Note: Not to be used on legal documents)

Date created: 12/1/2025 

Last Data Uploaded: 11/28/2025 8:19:23 PM

590 ft

Overview

Legend 

Parcels

Roads

Ridgeland Zoning

SD - Exit 21

SD - Genesis

SD - Good Hope

SD - Industrial

SD - Moultrie

T1 - Natural Zone

T3 - Neighborhood
Zone

T4 - Neighborhood
Core

T5 - Town
Center/Main St

<all other values>



   RIDGELAND, SOUTH CAROLINA   |  33

▼  GROWTH MAP / FUTURE LAND USE MAP

Secondary Growth Areas

Primary Growth Areas

Ridgeland BoundaryInfill / Redevelopment

Approved Development Water Bodies

Developed Land

Restricted Development



   RIDGELAND, SOUTH CAROLINA   |  37

Overview:
Infill / Redevelopment areas are generally 
concentrated toward the center of the City. 
These areas are either currently undeveloped 
or developed at a lower density / intensity than 
could be supported in these prime locations. 

Given their proximity to existing development, 
particularly in and around downtown, these 
areas should be targeted for infill development 
and redevelopment opportunities. The new 
development should be consistent with 
surrounding properties, blending seamlessly 
into the existing footprint. Given the scattered 
locations of this category, future transect / zoning 
classifications should be determined based on 
surrounding zoning classifications.

Character:
While these properties are currently undeveloped 
or under-developed, they are surrounded by 
existing development of suburban to urban scale.
 

Transect / Zoning Classification:
•	 T3 - Neighborhood General
•	 T4 - Neighborhood Core
•	 T5 - Town Center / Main Street

Land Use and Context:
•	 Residential (medium to high density)
•	 Commercial and Mixed Use
•	 Light Industrial

INFILL / REDEVELOPMENT

AIRPORT

TARBORO ROAD

TILMAN ROAD

GLOVER ROAD

BE
ES

 CREK ROAD

STATE ROAD 27-19

























Jasper County, SC

Developed by

Parcel ID 062-00-10-002
Sec/Twp/Rng n/a
Property
Address  

824 FRONTAGE RD
E

Alternate
ID  

062-00-10-002

Class Exempt
property

Acreage 9.4

Owner
Address  

TOWN OF
RIDGELAND  
PO BOX 1119  
RIDGELAND, SC
29936

Last 2 Sales
Date   Price   Reason   Qual  
5/24/2023   $5   n/a   U  
n/a   0   n/a   n/a  

District 01
Brief Tax Description n/a

(Note: Not to be used on legal documents)

Date created: 12/1/2025 

Last Data Uploaded: 11/28/2025 8:19:23 PM

3,895 ft

Overview

Legend 

Parcels

Roads

Ridgeland Zoning

SD - Exit 21

SD - Genesis

SD - Good Hope

SD - Industrial

SD - Moultrie

T1 - Natural Zone

T3 - Neighborhood
Zone

T4 - Neighborhood
Core

T5 - Town
Center/Main St

<all other values>



   RIDGELAND, SOUTH CAROLINA   |  37

Overview:
Infill / Redevelopment areas are generally 
concentrated toward the center of the City. 
These areas are either currently undeveloped 
or developed at a lower density / intensity than 
could be supported in these prime locations. 

Given their proximity to existing development, 
particularly in and around downtown, these 
areas should be targeted for infill development 
and redevelopment opportunities. The new 
development should be consistent with 
surrounding properties, blending seamlessly 
into the existing footprint. Given the scattered 
locations of this category, future transect / zoning 
classifications should be determined based on 
surrounding zoning classifications.

Character:
While these properties are currently undeveloped 
or under-developed, they are surrounded by 
existing development of suburban to urban scale.
 

Transect / Zoning Classification:
•	 T3 - Neighborhood General
•	 T4 - Neighborhood Core
•	 T5 - Town Center / Main Street

Land Use and Context:
•	 Residential (medium to high density)
•	 Commercial and Mixed Use
•	 Light Industrial

INFILL / REDEVELOPMENT

AIRPORT

TARBORO ROAD

TILMAN ROAD

GLOVER ROAD

BE
ES

 CREK ROAD

STATE ROAD 27-19


	Planning Commission
	Town Hall, Council Chambers, 1 Town Hall, Ridgeland, SC 29936
	II. Roll Call
	III. Approval of Minutes: November 10, 2025
	V. New Business:
	1. The applicant and authorized agent, Matison Cleland, applied for rezoning of one (1) lot of record consisting of 1.7 acres.  The property is TMS# 063-26-17-002 and is located at 148 West Langford Street within town limits.  The request is to rezone...
	Public Hearing Comments: Ask for public comment
	Planning Commissions role: Advisory to Council
	Action needed: Recommendation to Council
	2. The applicant and authorized agent on behalf of the Town of Ridgeland, Dennis Averkin, Town Administrator, applied for a petition for annexation and zoning designation of T4 Neighborhood Core for one lot of record located at 824 East Frontage Road ...
	Public Meeting Comments: Ask for public comment
	Planning Commissions role: Advisory to Council
	Action needed: Recommendation to Council
	ADPB107.tmp
	Planning Commission
	Town Hall, Council Chambers, 1 Town Sq, Ridgeland, SC 29936
	II. Roll Call
	Roll call was taken by Aaron. All members present.
	III. Approval of Minutes: October 20, 2025
	Motion to approve October 20, 2025, meeting minutes were made by Commissioner Tenerowicz and seconded by Commissioner May. Motion passed unanimously.
	V. New Business:
	1. The applicant and property owner, Marlon Sheffield, applied for rezoning of one (1) lot of record consisting of 4 acres.  The property is TMS# 063-17-02-030 and is located on Great Swamp Road within town limits.  The request is to rezone from T3 Ne...
	Aaron Rucker explained that Mr. Sheffield requested to have the property rezoned to T4 because a landscape business has expressed an interest that is not allowed in T3.  This would not be the only use allowed, however.
	Public Hearing Comments: Nancy Lowther, a resident on Great Swamp Road, spoke in opposition to the rezoning citing that plenty of underutilized commercial areas already exist elsewhere in town better suited to this request and concerns of increased tr...
	Motion: Commissioner Rodina made a motion to recommend approval for the request to rezone TMS# 063-17-02-030 from T3 Neighborhood General to T4 Neighborhood Core with the intention of utilizing the property for a landscaping business. Motion seconded ...




